SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 52 (PRINCE RUPERT)

AGENDA

REGULAR OPEN SCHOOL BOARD MEETING
SCHOOL BOARD OFFICE
Tuesday, June 13 2017- 7:00 P.M.

Adoption of Agenda

Presentation(s):
21 Hartley Bay School and West Vancouver Art Collaboration — via Skype

Approval of the Minutes of the
31 Open Board Meeting held April 11, 2017 (p. 3)

Necessity of Closed Meeting and Agenda
4.1 Approval of Agenda
4.2 Approval of Minutes of the In-Camera Meeting held May 8, 2017

4.3 Human Resources Report

44 Secretary-Treasurer's Report

45 Other

4.6 Legal Items

47 Information Items

438 Old Business

49 Items for Release
Correspondence

51 Addressed to the Board
511 Presentation
5.1.1.1 PRDTU, May 1, 2017, (p. 8)
5.1.2  Psychologist Assessments
5.1.2.1 PRDTU, May 11, 2017 (p. 10)

5.2 Copied to the Board
5.21 Request for Funding
5.2.1.1 School District No. 42, April 26, 2017 (p. 13)

Superintendent of Schools’ Report (p. 15)
6.1 For Board Information:
6.1.1  Field Trips
6.1.2 Enrolment
6.1.3  Upcoming Projects/Learning

Page 1 of 2 Page 1 of 33




7.

10..

11

12.

13.

6.14 Information Technology Report (p. 16)
6.1.5 Other

Secretary-Treasurer’s Report
7.1 Expenditure Statement (p. 17)
7.2 Operations Department Report (p. 18)

Committee Reports
8.1 Finance & Building Committee (Trustees Beil, Huddlestone, Sanchez)
8.1.1 Carbon Neutral Action Report (p. 19)
8.1.2  2018-19 Capital Plan (p. 22)

8.2 Framework for Enhancing Student Learning (Trustees Horne, Sanchez)
8.3 Provincial Council (Trustees Horne, Sanchez)
84 Aboriginal Education Council (Trustees Huddlestone, Sanchez)
8.5 Policy Committee (Trustees Kuntz, Horne)

85.1 June5, 2017 Meeting Minutes (p. 23)
85.2  Policies for Review
8.5.2.1 1440 Diversity and Inclusion Policy (p. 25)
8.5.2.2 6310 Role of the Superintendent Policy (p. 27)
8.5.2.3 6315 Delegation to the Superintendent Policy (p. 28)
85.3  Policies for Approval
8.5.3.1 1120 French Immersion Policy (p. 29)
8.5.3.2 1320 Communicable Diseases and Immunizations Policy {p. 30)

8.6 District Technology Steering Committee (Trustee Horne)
8.6.1 May 24, 2017 Meeting Minutes (p. 32)

Old Business

New Business
10.1  2017-18 Board Meeting Dates (p. 33)

Information Items .
11.1  June 1-30, 2017 Site Unseen Exhibit, Museum of Northern BC.
11.2  June 16, 2017 Hartley Bay Grad
11.3  June 16, 2017 Pacific Coast School Grad

10 Minute Question and Answer Period

Adjournment

Page 2 of 2 ’ Page 2 of 33




SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 52 (PRINCE RUPERT)

MINUTES

REGULAR OPEN SCHOOL BOARD MEETING
SCHOOL BOARD OFFICE
~ Monday May 8, 2017- 7:00 P.M.

Trustees Present: T. Last, J. Beil, J. Horne, T-L. Huddlestone, B. Kuntz, L. Sanchez

Staff Present: S. Jones, K. Minette, C. McIntyre, K. Gomez, Da\ arter, A. Samoil

Chair Tina Last acknowledged that the meeting is being held on tradi :
introduced the new Director of Human Resources, Mr. David,Garter. The meeti
7:00 p.m.

nsyen territory and
was called to order at

1. Adoption of Agenda
Motion 20170508-1.0a

Huddlestone “Be it resolved by the Bo
Horne (Prince Rupert) that the ac

Carried

Presentation

\ved by the Board of Education of School District No. 52
rt) that the minutes of the open Board meeting held
2017 be approved as presented.” Carried

4, Necessity of Closed Meeting and Agenda
4.1 Approval of Agenda
4.2 Approval of Minutes of the In-Camera Meeting held April 11, 2017

43 Human Resources Report
44 Secretary-Treasurer's Report
45 Other

4.6 Legal Items

Page 1 of 5 Page 3 of 33



47 Information Items
48 Old Business

4.9 Items for Release
Motion 20170508-4.1a
Horne “Be it resolved by the Board of Education of School District No. 52
Huddlestone (Prince Rupert) that the closed meeting be held and that agenda
items 1 through 9 be approved.” Carried
5. Correspondence
51 - Addressed to the Board
None.

5.2 Copied to the Board
521 Approval of Memorandum
5.2.1.1 School District N

Motion 20170508-5.2.1a
Horne “Be it resolved by the Board of E

" Carried

Kuntz (Prince Rupert) that the letter from

6. Superintendent of Schools’ Repo
6.1 For Board Informa
6.1.1

ith teachers at many grade levels and with DPAC. Shelley
oming later this month.

formation Technology Report

1e Superintendent presented the Information Technology Report for
April 2017. In response to a question the Director of Instruction,
Information Technology advised that the anti-virus system has been
upgraded.

6.1.5 Other
The Superintendent reported on the results of the middle and secondary
school bands at the Pacific Northwest Music Festival.

Two schools were visited by the Lieutenant Governor of BC.

A video of the Innovation 150 visit to Prince Rupert was shared with the
Board.

Page 2 of 5 Page 4 of 33



7. Secretary-Treasurer’s Report
71 Expenditure Statement
The Secretary Treasurer presented the Expendlture Statement for April 2017.

7.2 Operations Department Report
The Secretary Treasurer presented the Operations Department Report for

April 2017.
8. Committee Reports
8.1 Finance & Building Committee s Beil, Huddlestone, Sanchez)

8.1.1 Westview Child Care Society Lea

Motion 20170508-8.1.1a
Huddlestone “Be it resolved by the Board of Educ
Sanchez District No. 52 (Prince Rupert) that

Child Care Society fo
August 31, 2018 at the
Board with
the Secreta

of Property

Motion 201’
Beil
Huddlestone
Carried

Motion 20170508-8.1.1c
Beil “Be it resolved by the Board of Education of School District No. 52
Huddlestone (Prince Rupert) that the School District No. 52 (Prince Rupert) Lease

of Property Bylaw No. 2017-18-01 be read a second time the 8th day

of May, 2017" Carried

Page 30of 5 ' Page 5 of 33



Motion 20170508-8.1.1d
Beil “Be it resolved by the Board of Education of School District No.
Huddlestone 52 (Prince Rupert) that the School District No. 52 (Prince Rupert)
Lease of Property Bylaw No. 2017-18-01 be read a third time, finally ~ Carried as

passed and adopted, the 8th day of May, 2017." Amended
8.2 Framework for Enhancing Student Learning (Trustees Horne, Sanchez)
None.
83 Provincial Council (Trustee Horne)

ting following the BCSTA
1e budget was approved. The

Trustee Horne reported on the Provincial Counc
AGM. The association’s lease was extended
next meeting is in October 2017.

Trustees discussed asking the North West Branch to rt a motion to move

the budget debate back to the A

Trustee Sanchez asked that h
Council.

84 Aboriginal Educati (Trustees Huddlestone, Sanchez)

None.

Council

(Trustees Kuntz, Horne)

8.5 Policy Committee

(Trustee Horne)

 Board of Education of School District
rt) that the Chair write a letter to the Past
CSTA thanking her for her service, and a letter to the
and Board of BCSTA congratulating them on their

Carried

€ Huddlestone advised that she will report to the Professional Learning
mmittee the concerns about the venue and accommodation for the AGM.

10. New Business
None.
11. Information Items

111 May 25-26, 2017, Shelley Moore
Chair Last noted the dates for the next Shelley Moore sessions.

Page 4 of 5 Page 6 of 33




112 May 26, 2017 CHSS Grad
Chair Last asked trustees to confirm their attendance at the CHSS graduation
event with the high school. '

113  June 12, 2017 Service Awards
Chair Last asked trustees to mark their calendar for the Service Awards.

114 June 16, 2017 Hartley Bay Grad
Chair Last noted the date for the Hartley Bay graduatjon.

11.5  June 16, 2017 Pacific Coast School Grad

Chair Last asked trustees to mark their calen e PCS graduation event.

12. 10 Minute Question and Answer Period
Q. The grade 6 trip to Kitselas is not a CHSS;
A. Ttis for PRMS. :

13. Adjournment

Motion 20170508-13.1a
Huddlestone “Be it resolved by th
Horne No. 52 (Prince Rupert)

Carried

Page 5 of 5 Page 7 of 33



SD52
A\ \ 4
= <~E =~
PHONE: 250-627-1700 FAX: 250-627-6784 869 FRASER STREET PRINCE RUPERT, BC V8] 1R1

\
BCTF )y Prince Rupert District Teachers’ Union

May 1, 2107

Chair Tina Last
Board of Education
School District 52

Dear Mrs. Last;

I am writing in regards to the April 11 Budget Presentation at the regular Board
Meeting. The Prince Rupert District Teachers’ Union has concerns moving forth with the
implementation of the new BC curriculum under the proposed 2017-18 budget allocations.
We know each of the trustees are well aware of the unprecedented changes underway and
share our commitment to providing real, engaging, and innovative learning experiences for
students. This has been clearly articulated in the Framework for Enhancing Student
Learning that we have been proud partners in developing.

In the endeavor of expanding student access to inquiry, understanding and
appreciation of Aboriginal perspectives and worldviews, project and problem-based
community learning, we simply need adequate resources. There has been a steady erosion
of funding classroom teachers can access to ensure the revised curriculum is successfully
implemented. Everyday I hear another example of the disparity between the essential items
a teacher knows their students should have and how they have to make do without. These
gaps result in lost opportunities, growing frustration for students wanting their needs met,
and posing real safety issues.

As the information on the budget decisions have trickled out to the schools there is
deep concern on what was included, overlooked and a general lack of communication at the
school level on the real financial needs. Teachers were invited to participate in the public
forum, online surveys, PRDTU surveys, and the stakeholders’ presentations and it appears
our voices have fallen on deaf ears. Through staff meetings issues have been raised time
and again but did not translate to the ‘sticky dot’ meeting held by administration. These
requests are directly linked to student success and creating the best possible environments
inclusive of all learners. We'd like the board to reconsider the following list of items in light
of the healthy surplus. These items were cut recently and not replaced this year.

« Access to resources at a variety of reading levels in the revised curricular areas:
books, textboaoks, online materials, printing/copying costs when addressing existing
resource gaps. If we are to use online resources there must be adequate technology
for students to access it.

* Overall department and equipment funding K-12. There have been reductions
when it should be increased during curriculum implementation. Even the most
basic items are not being covered or replaced. Teachers are busy fundraising or

Page 8 of 33



investing significant amounts of their personal income to cover the gaps. Costs are
only increasing and budgets are far from keeping up.

s Maintain staffing levels of secondary counsellors: With or without the restored
funding this district has recognized over the years that student need is above the
minimal ratios as outlined in D.1/D.2 of the collective agreement. These positions
can he prioritized at the same time we address class size and composition issues
with a surplus budget.

* Restore science lab aide position: If we are truly committed to real, hands on and
engaging learning experiences we must have access to lab aides at secondary and
ideally some access for elementary and middle school teachers as well. This
position is vital to ensuring lab safety as well. The reality is with less support
student learning suffers. As the district recruits science teachers advertising a lab
aide is a plus, other districts have them.

* Restore department head positions, team leaders, and grade group meetings to
facilitate curriculum change and resource management: Teachers across the
grades and subject areas need the opportunity to review curriculum changes, share
in professional discourse, and review resources to optimize learning and meet
diverse needs. Change takes time and it must be fully invested in. Teachers need
time to consult and ensure we are moving forward together on these changes.
Coordination and communication of these meetings require time, effort and
planning of those in speciality positions.

* Restore library assistants and kindergarten workers: Teachers are noticing the
absence of these valuable positions and the impacts on students and their families.
We must reinvest in these areas as literacy and early learning are proven to yield
long-term rewards.

* Consultation on new positions such as a behavioural interventionist: What is this
position? How does the role function within the school-based team? What are the
qualifications? Who was consulted on this brand new position?

We would like to present these concerns to the board of education at your earliest
convenience. We had asked weeks ago to be on the May agenda and were asked to wait
until June. These needs are pressing and should be in place for September.

Sincerely,

=

Raegan Sawka, President
Prince Rupert District Teachers’ Union

cc/Superintendent, Secretary-Treasurer

Page 9 of 33



7\ /N
\VV BCTF & Prince Rupert District Teachers’ Union \({/V SD52 &

S e
PHONE: 250-627-1700 FAX:250-627-6784 869 FRASER STREET PRINCE RUPERT, BC V8] 1R1

May 11, 2107

Chair Tina Last
Board of Education
School District 52

Dear Mrs. Last;

I am writing in regards to the appalling waitlists for access to level C psycho-
educational assessments in School District 52. When I began working in the area of
special education in 2001, our resident school psychologist assessed an average of
70-80 students per year. The reports generated provided the school based team
crucial information to implement key supports for students facing a variety of
complex learning challenges. These psychometric profiles, intervention strategies
and ongoing guidance provided much needed information to ensure each learner
met his or her full potential. The families understood what their child’s specific
strengths and areas of challenge were. They also had clarified if they met diagnostic
criteria as outline in the DSM. These assessments can generate additional supports
and even outside services. Currently we maybe have 35-40 students seen per year.

We acknowledge it can be challenging to hire in this field, however we've
recently learned that neighboring districts are working on their second full time
educational psychologist. The PRDTU is aware that last year the budget was
reduced for contracted educational psychologist time. Teachers were shocked and
dismayed that the contract time was cut by 20 assessments per year for financial
reasons when the services were still available or could even be increased. The
Northern View reported on April 19 that our district had a “monster surplus” of $1.4
million dollars. Why wasn’t ending this waitlist prioritized and extending early
identification to the primary grades? Elementary teachers are left frustrated for
years working without this vital information and supports to address students who
are struggling with significant delays in literacy, numeracy, expressive or receptive
language and other physical or social challenges. Students in our district are waiting
considerably longer than those in other rural and northern locations. We were very
upset to learn that critical time is being lost and how earlier identification and
intervention could be mitigating some of the secondary impacts associated with
delayed diagnosis of students with more complex needs.

This is a human rights issue and disadvantages families facing socio-
economic challenges disproportionately. For example, when my son was in grade 2
his teacher shared her observations of some of the challenges he was facing. We

Page 10 of 33



followed up with his pediatrician and got him into see the Northern Health
Assessment Network team in Prince George. He received a diagnosis of autism
spectrum disorder. The school received a full and detailed report on interventions
and his complete profile. He then qualified for additional school-based funding and
resources. Teachers at his school said it was very helpful we could access those
assessments because they finally understood how to best support him. They added
that often students referred to the school-based team in the primary grades might
be seen by grade 5 and some not until middle school. The gaps for these learners
widen. Teachers at the middle school have reported learners who are reading at a
grade one or two level who appear to be ‘shutting down’ out of frustration at the
lack of individualized supports and access to resources. They are developing a
negative self-image, withdrawing from learning and showing increasing behavioural
issues. Early interventions and targeted supports based on more specified
assessment information could be preventing this.

We're appealing the board to reconsider the funding for these assessments.
Please explore funding and recruiting a full-time educational psychologist. At the
very least increase the contract time in the meantime. We are looking at increased
learning services teacher ratios for next year thanks to our restored contract
language. Perhaps we can increase the pre-screening and referral process through
level B assessments to early identify those who might need access to these services.

Early Intervention and Supports Policy from Inclusion BC:

The purpose of early intervention and support is to identify children with special
needs as early as possible and to provide them with the supports and services they
need to meet their physical growth and their social, emotional and intellectual
development needs.

The lifelong benefits of early intervention programs for children with
developmental disabilities are well documented. The earlier a child’s special needs
can be identified and addressed, the more likely the child and family will experience
meaningful results from intervention. Evidence shows that early intervention
increases the developmental, educational and social gains for children and reduces
the potential for secondary problems.

Another function of early intervention and support is to better allow families to
understand their children and become actively involved in supporting their child’s
development. When children and families receive support early on, family stress is
often reduced with the result that families are better able to envision a more
positive and optimistic future for their children.

Guiding Principles

Fostering the growth and development of children is one of society’s most
important responsibilities.

Page 11 of 33



+ All children should be treated as if they have unlimited potential to grow and
develop.

+ Early intervention supports and services have a lasting benefit to children
throughout their lives.

Research has demonstrated the positive effects of early intervention. However, in
British Columbia, many children and families sit on lengthy waitlists, missing
or delaying the opportunity to fully benefit from early intervention support.
Other children miss the opportunity for service because they don’t have a
diagnosis that conveniently streams them into the service-delivery system.

The intention of early intervention services is to provide them as soon as possible,
once a child’s need has been identified. Identification and accessibility are therefore
fwo components that are essential to a successful service delivery system. Early
identification of children with special needs can be increased through providing
screening services to identify children. While much has been done in regards to
health promotion for children and families, accessibility to services is still a
problem, especially for poorer families and families whose first language is not
English.

Systemic problems can mean that a significant amount of time may pass
between when a problem is identified and when a service is provided -- a
critical factor in the effectiveness of early intervention.

Policy Statements

1. Children who need extra support and service should be provided with early
intervention services as soon as the need is identified.

2. Children with special needs entering the school system should continue to receive
needs-based services throughout their school years.

3. Children should not be waitlisted for intervention services.

* children with special needs: children who require extra support for their physical,
intellectual, emotional, communicative, behavioural or social development.

We look forward to discussing this matter at your earliest convenience.

Sincerely,

=

Raegan Sawka, President
Prince Rupert District Teachers’ Union

cc/Superintendent, Assistant Superintendent, District Principal of Learning Services

Page 12 of 33



www.sd42.ca

£
#

4

Schiool District 42

Maple Ridge & Pitt Meadows
Learning Today, Leading Tomornow

April 26, 2017

Honourable Jane Philpott
Federal Minister of Health
Government of Canada
6060 Main Street
Stouffville, Ontario, L4A 1B8

Dear Minister Philpott,

Re: Request For Additional Provincial Funding For Child And Youth Mental Health
Services

At the April 12, 2017 School District No. 42 Board of Education meeting trustees discussed a
letter sent to your office by our colleagues in School District No. 5 (Southeast Kootenay)
and circulated to all other BC Boards of Education. Our Board i$ unanimous in supporting
their request for further resources to address what has become a critical gap in services for
our youth.

To illustrate how great the need is in our own community of 104,000 an ad hoc committee
of local professionals and non profit agencies have come together to address at least some
of the lack of available resources. A youth wellness centre staffed with a psychiatrist one
day per week has been {ocated in a local youth recreation centre to meet a portion of the
current backlog. Previous wait times for youth being referred by school counsellors and
others were frequently several months in duration; definitely not appropriate for a young
person in crisis. The centre has been established and operated entirely through local
fundraising and only recently received a one time grant of $30,000 from the provincial
government. This was an appreciated gesture to be sure but not a commitment to provide

~. an important and needed service through our health care system on an ongoing basis.

Well over 150 young people have been referred to the centre since it opened in May of 2016
and now it too is experiencing backlogs. This situation simply isn‘t good enough. Citizens
should not have to raise funds through donations and fundraising dinners to provide a
service which should be provided through our health care system. Our youth shouldn‘t have
to face such a lack of service that the community around them have felt compelled to take
matters into their own hands. The intent of the group is to respond to some of the unmet
needs of our youth and demonstrate as clearly as possible to government how critical the
need is. If the project receives no more substantive support from government éventually
the centre will have to be closed. At that point the level of frustration experienced by
citizens in our community will be significant. More importantly the youth currently being
served will be left out in the cold. None of us wish to be responsible for the consequences of
that neglect.

School District No. 42 | Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows
22225 Brown Avenue Maple Ridgi;g, Bf% 2X 8N6
Phone: 604.463.4200 TFax- 604-463.4181




Shool District 42

Maple Ridge & Pitt Meadows
Learning Today, Leading Tomorrow

Recently we heard from several of our school counsellors who continually decry the lack of
community support services and the load they are being asked to address with limited
resources and training in mental health intervention therapies. They spoke to us of their
own feelings of guilt at being unable to address all of the critical needs they face with very
limited community resources available to help. Since they are often the point of first contact
for a young person in crisis they need to be able to make referrals to agencies in the
community who can provide the kind of quick and intense response which is often required.
Our counsellors are currently feeling quite alone in this challenge and referenced a recent
series of articles published in The Province which highlighted the lack of required resources
in British Columbia:
http://www.theprovince.com/news/local+news/youth+depression+crucial+intervene+early/
13303184/story. html

We are in complete agreement with the recommendations of the bi partisan select standing
committee on children and youth to which the SD5 board refers and wish to add our own
voice to their expression of the immediate need to make a greater investment in the mental
wellness of the young people living in our community, province and country. Please give
every consideration to addressing this urgent need in collaboration with the provincial health
authorities,

We will be sharing this correspondence with the provincial government once the current
election is over and look forward to your coliaborative response.

Sinc]rely,

Mike Murray, Chairpers®he.——
Board of Education

cc

Board of Education of School District No, 42 (Maple Ridge-Pitt Meadows)

Mr. Dan Ruimy, MP (Maple Ridge-Pitt Meadows)

District Parent Advisory Council

District Student Advisory Council

Maple Ridge Pitt Meadows Community Services - Youth Wellness Centre Committee
Maple Ridge Teachers’ Association

CUPE Local 703

Board of Education of School District No. 5 (Southeast Kootenay)

BC School Trustees’ Association

BC School Trustees’ Association for distribution to All Boards of Education

Mr. Doug Bing (Liberal Candidate — Maple Ridge-Pitt Meadows)

Mr. Marc Dalton (Liberal Candidate - Maple Ridge-Mission)

Ms, Lisa Beare (NDP Candidate - Maple Ridge-Pitt Meadows)

Mr. Bob D’Elth (NDP Candidate - Maple Ridge-Mission)

Mr. Peter Tam (Green Party Candidate — Maple Ridge-Mission)

Mr. Alex Pope (Green Party Candidate — Maple Ridge-Pitt Meadows)

Mr. Steve Ranta (Independent Candidate - Maple Ridge-Pitt Meadows)

Mr. Trevor Hamilton (Conservative Candidate — Maple Ridge-Mission)

Mr. Gary John O'Driscoll, (Conservative Candidate ~ Maple Ridge-Pitt Meadows)

wivw,sd42ca

School District No. 42 | Maple Ridge ~ Pitt Meadows
22225 Brown Avenue Maple Ridge, BC V2X 8N6
Phone: 604.463.4205 195 568 333.4181




PRINCE RUPERT SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 52

SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS REPORT

TO BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES

Tuesday, June 13, 2017
6.1  For Board Information:
6.1.1 Field Trips Approved
School Dates Grade # Purpose
School
Days
1. | PCS May 10, 2017 9-12 1 TREC, Kayaking, Kloya Bay
2. | CHSS May 30, 2017 9-10 1 Lava Beds
3. 1 CHSS May 31, 2017 11-12 5 Butze Rapids/Diana Lake
4, | CHSS June 1-4, 2017 10-12 2 Track & Field
Championships, Langley
5. CHSS June 2, 2017 PE Cert 1 Kitson Day Paddle
11-12
6. | CHSS June 7, 2017 10-12 2 Boys Rugby, Victoria
7. i Roosevelt : June 14, 2017 3-4 1 Kitselas Canyon Tour-
8. | Conrad June 26, 2017 4-5 1 Metlakatla
9. | CHSS May 17-22, 2018 10-12 5 San Francisco, California
PCS
6.1.2 Enrolment (D. Carter)
6.1.3 Upcoming Project/Learning
6.14 Information Technology Report (A. Samoil)

6.1.5

Other

Page 15 of 33




PRINCE
RuPERT
: School !)istrlct No. 52

Information Technology

) Andrew Samoil - Director of Instruction/IT

Monthly Report to the Board

May 2017

A total of 194 Help Desk tickets were received and prioritized for action this month
excluding telephone calls and text message requests. The majority of calls were for
email (54), software (46), and user accounts (29). Tickets for MyEdBC issues
numbered 8. Fourteen tickets remained open and 25 tickets were pending.

IT staff continue to work on laptops, desktops, and tablets (iPads) that have failed or
require repairs for missing keys/cracked screens, etc.

Incidents occurred with two servers that required extensive analysis of our network.

One server appeared to have acquired a virus. Staff worked with a variety of software
vendors to rebuild and restore the server. The email server was infected with a virus that
caused users to experience intermittent outages for 6 days.

While working on the issues above our transition to Office365 (email program) was
halted when only half-complete. As a result some staff members were blocked from
receiving or sending emails for a day or two, however IT staff continued to work on
these issues while working on the server issue. Some staff have already reported they
are pleased with the new email system as it provides 10 times the storage capacity of our
old email system.

Microsoft has provided additional software to help prevent any virus from attacking our
network or systems. The software has now been applied to our servers.

A router failed at Conrad Elementary school resulting in an Internet/Email outage for 12
hours. The failed router is under warranty and we had a spare on hand that was
configured and deployed.

Systems Performance:
One server was down for three days with intermittent issues for two following days.

Purchasing:
Approximately $23,000 in purchases were completed for hardware, and recurring

software subscriptions.

Page 16 of 33



06/05/17 11:59:50
SDS GUT
Report ID 2001

Fund : 0 oOperating
PR TITLE

Function : 1 Instruction
02 Regular Instruction
03 Career Preparation
07 Library services
08 Counselling
10 special Education
30 english Language Development
31 Aboriginal Education
41 Business Admin

TOTAL FOR Function - 1

Function : 4 District Administration
11 Education Admin
40 Governance
41 Business Admin

TOTAL FOR Function - 4

Function : 5 Maintenance & Operations

41 Business Admin

50 Plant Maintenance

52 Maintenance of Grounds
56 utilities

TOTAL FOR Function - 5

Function : 7 Transportation
41 Business Admin
70 Student Transportation

TOTAL FOR Function - 7

TOTAL FOR Fund - 0

GRAND TOTAL

school District No. 52
EXPENDITURES BY PROGRAM AT MAY 31, 2017
( Fund-Function-Program )

1,106,824.42
10,530.25
48,768.96
43,891.06
389,671.39
31,178.31
143,309.76

133,175.88 -

1,907,350.03

33,602.81
13,544.69
92,700.90

139,848.40

14,305.13
178,725.94
4,631,06
68,037.56

265,699.69

270.27
46,928.46

2,360,096.85

YEAR TO DATE

9,806,104.43
89,290.86
418,765.02
391,059.18
3,304,626.14
224,052.14
1,256,248.27
1,358,800.39

16,848,946.43

369,296.70
129,371.33
898,121.08

1,396,789.11

232,418.22
2,330,882.61
114,886.00
447,180.05

3,125,366.88

2,861.69
272,841.08

21,646,805.19

ENCUMBERED

2,904.04

2,904.04

22,495.79

22,495.79

25,399.83

FULL YEAR
BUDGET

11,019,339
106,126
491,319
434,672
3,806,452

256,806
1,481,447
1,502,604

19,098,765

439,512
173,153
1,111,067

1,723,732

282,088
2,438,988
97,795
507,175

3,326,046

3,229
301,542

24,453,314

PAGE 1
ACROL31-E
Expenditure

AVAILABLE PERC

1,210,331 11

16,835 16
72,554 15
43,613 10
501,826 13
32,754 13
225,199 15
143,804 10

2,246,915 12

70,215 16
43,782 25
212,946 19
326,943 19
49,670 18
85,610 4
17,091- 17-
59,995 12
178,183 5
367 11
28,701 10
29,068 10

2,781,109 11

Page 17 of 33



PRINCE
RUPERT OPERATIONS DEPARTMENT
School District No. 52

A«Jﬂ/

— D. Garcia, Director of Operations

Monthly Report to the Board

May 2017

Facilities Work orders continue to be reviewed and prioritized on an ongoing
basis for maintenance or capital project planning, subject to change due
to regular adjustments in priorities.
The Wap Sigatgyet Roof Replacement project has started, with the
tender phase on-going for the Conrad Elementary Targeted Roof
Replacement project.
A full-time electrician and plumber/gas fitter have joined the
maintenance team.
Capital and maintenance planning is on-going for Summer.

Energy & The Conrad Elementary mechanical upgrade is about 95% complete.

Conservation

Transportation No items to report.

Health & Safety No injuries were reported in the department this month.

Custodial Transition process has started between retiring staff and their respective

replacements.




PRINCE
RUPERT

School District No, 52

2016 Carbon Neutral Action Report

School District No. 52 {Prince Rupert)

Declaration statement:

This Carbon Neutral Action Report for the period January 1*, 2016 to December 31%, 2016 summarizes the emissions
profile, the total offsets to reach net-zero emissions, the actions taken in 2016 to reduce greenhouse gas emissions and
plans to continue reducing emissions in 2017 and beyond.

By June 30, 2017 the final Carbon Neutral Action Report for School District No. 52 (Prince Rupert) will be posted to the
district website at www,sd52.bc.ca.

Executive Summary

School District No. 52 Is a district of approximately 2,000 students. In 2016 the district educated its students in five
elementary schools, one middie school, one secondary school, one Aboriginal village school and one distributed learning
storefront school. The district is supported by a maintenance building, an aboriginal education-administration building
and a board office. Five Prince Rupert trustees and one rural trustee represent the communities of School District

No. 52. Ofits 15 sites, 12 are owned {3 of these are currently closed with no heat maintained in 2 of the 3), 1 is band
owned and 2 are leased. The average age of the owned buildings is over 40 years.

With funding being scarce and aging facilities, the District looks to carbon neutral projects that deliver savings directly or
indirectly by reducing maintenance on its facilities and vehicles. In the last three years the district has completed a
number of energy efficiency upgrades. The cumulative impact of these improvements is demonstrated by the
decreasing tonnes of emissions from the district, '

TCO2E

Page 19 of 33




Overview
2016 Greenhouse Gas Emissions

Offsets Applied to Become Carbon Neutral in 2015

Offsets for 816 Tonnes of carboh dioxide equivalent were purchased, which included 85 tonnes in adjustments to the
reporting for 2015. Emissions reported for district bussing which do not require offsets were 20 Tonnes of carbon
dioxide.

Actions Taken to Reduce Greenhouse Gas Emissions in 2016

School District No. 52's key actions taken during 2016 toward carbon neutrality included almost a full year impact from
the energy upgrades completed at the secondary school in early 2016. Energy upgrades were underway at an
elementary school in 2016. School District No. 52's efforts are aimed at retrofitting aging buildings with higher efficiency
equipment and consideration of replacement or closure of buildings. The district is looking to take advantage of fossil
fuel reduction projects like lighting retrofits and HVAC system upgrades, including boilers - patticularly where there is
sharing of project funding, a reasonable payback period or straight savings to the district. Additional energy audit work
was completed in 2016,

For the 2016-17 school year the district no longer contracted for bus services. Sone students impacted by this change
are able to ride the municipal transit system. This resulted in a reduction in greenhouse gas emissions.

Two service vehicles were replaced In 2015. The réplacement vehicles are more energy efficient than the vehicles that
were replaced, These replacement vehicles had their first full year of service in 2016.

Plans to Continue Reducing Greenhouse Gas Emissions in 2017 - 2019

Implementation of the energy efficlency project will be completed at an elementary school in mid 2017, so that it will be
in effect for the 2017-18 winter season. Work has been approved for a DDC upgrade at another elementary school
which will commence in 2017. Design work for additional energy efficiency projects has been completed. These
projects will be completed as funding is made available.

Report

Mandate
Carbon neutrality is linked to the mandate of the district by government regulation.

Sustainability Goals

The Board’s Energy Conservation and Environmental Stewardship Policy notes that the Board is committed to the
continuous improvement of the district’s energy management performance and to building a culture of sustainability
and environmental stewardship.

Benefits

There are significant financial benefits to reducing carbon emissions, both in terms of reduced energy costs and reduced
carbon offset payments. Education of employees and students in ways to reduce energy use will have a broader benefit
to the community as a whole.

Page 20 of 33




Emissions and Offsets Summary

School District No. 52 (Prince Rupert) GHG Emissions and Offsets for 2016 (TCO2E)

GHG Emissions created in calendar year 2016 (from SMARTTool Homepage):

Total Emissions ‘ 751

Total Emissions for Offsets 731

Adjustments to GHG Emissions Reported in Previous Years (from SMARTTool Homepage):

Total Emissions 85

Total Ehnissions for Offsets 85

Credit owing from PCT at end of 2015 reporting year (if applicable — from May 15 Invoice):

Credit Owing 0
Total Emissions for Offsets for the 2016 Reparting Year (from Offset 816
Invoice):

Retirement of Offsets:

In accordance with the requirements of the Greenhouse Gas Reduction Targets Act and Carbon Neutral Government
Regulation, Schoof District No. 52 (Prince Rupert) is responsible for arranging for the retirement of the offsets obligation
reported above for the 2016 calendar year, together with any adjustiments reported for past calendar years. The district
hereby agrees that, in exchange for the Ministry of Environment ensuring that these offsets are retired on the district
behalf, the district will pay the associated invoice to be issued by the Ministry in an amount equal to $25 per tonne of
offsets retired on its behalf plus GST.

Executive sign-off:

C
(@DQ f D May 30, 2017
N

Signature Date -
Cam Mclintyre, CPA, CA : Secretary-Treasurer
Name Title

Page 21 of 33




School District No. 52. (Prince Rupert)

2018-19 Capital Plan

Seismic Project

1. Prince Rupert Middle School

Replacement Projects

1. Conrad Street Elementary School
2. District Support Services Building

School Enhancement Projects

CHSS Learning Commons
Booth Fire Suppression
Booth Dust Collection
Booth Roofing

B wnNne

Carbon Neutral Capital Program Projects

1. Pineridge Elementary DDC
2. Lax Kxeen Elementary Boiler Replacement

Page 22 of 33



School District No. 52 (Prince Rupert)
Policy Committee
Monday, June 5, 2017
5:00 pm

MINUTES

In attendance: Bart Kuntz
Sandra Jones
Ken Minette
Cam Mclntyre

Absent: James Horne

The meeting was called to order at 5:05 pm.

1. Policies for Review
a. 1440 — Diversity and Inclusion Policy
b. 6310 —Role of the Superintendent Policy
c. 6315 —Delegation to the Superintendent Policy

The Secretary-Treasurer presented the draft policies. Following discussion, the
committee made changes to the policies.

The committee recommended that the Board send the three draft policies, as
amended, to the district’s partner groups for their comments.

2. Policies for Approval
a. 1120 — French Immersion Policy
b. 1320 — Communicable Diseases and Immunizations Policy

The Secretary-Treasurer presented the policies for approval. There were no
suggested changes from partner groups.

The committee recommended that the Board approve these two policies.
3. Other Business
a. Financial Governance Policies
The Secretary-Treasurer reviewed the three financial governance policies

recommended at the BCSTA AGM to be in place in each school district. Work
on these policies will continue in the fall.

Page 23 of 33



b. 1320 — Administrative Bylaw #1

The Secretary-Treasurer and Superintendent discussed their preliminary
comments on the review of the bylaw. Terms of reference for other standing

committees should be developed.

Meeting Adjourned at 5:20 pm.
Next Meeting: Wednesday, June 28, 2017 at 5: 00 pm.

Page 24 of 33



1440 | Diversity and Inclusion Policy

Date Approved:
Date Amended:

The Board of Education is committed to a safe and inclusive learning and working environment for
all students, employees, and members of the school community, based on the principles of respect,
acceptance, and equity. The Board of Education recognizes and supports the BC Human Rights
Code which prohibits discrimination based on race, colour, ancestry, place or origin, religion, marital
status, family status, physical and mental ability, sexual orientation, or gender identity or expression.

Learning and working environments that are inclusive, safe and welcoming, and free from

discrimination, harassment, and violence;
Decision-making processes that give a voice to all members of the school community;

Policies and practices that promote fair and equitable treatment.
The Board is committed to:

1. creating an environment in the school district which is consistent with the B.C. Human Rights
Code;

2. providing studénts with cognitive, social-emotional, and physical access to educational programs
that will assist them in participating in and contributing to a diverse society;

3. hiring employees on the basis of ability and qualifications, and who are representative of the

diverse population it serves;

Page 25 of 33



reducing language and cultural barriers;

communicating effective;ly with all students, parents, guardians, employees and partner groups
to ensure that each person has a voice and is treated with dignity and respect through an
appropriate and constructive process. '

REFERENCES

School Act, Regulations and Orders

BC Human Rights Code (1996)

1410 - - District Code of Conduct Policy

1420-10 - - Student Responsibilities, Discipline and Suspension Regulation

1440-10 - - Multiculturalism Regulation

Page 26 of 33



6310 | Role of the Superintendent Policy

Date Approved: June 10 2014
Date Amended:

The Superintendent is the Chief Executive Officer of the school district and has, under the
direction of the Board, general supervision of all of the public schools, the personnel and the
various departments of the school system. The Superintendent is responsible for management of
the schools under the School Act, Regulations, Minister of Education Orders and Board policies,
and is accountable to the Board.

At the discretion of the Superintendent, the exercise of any powers and the discharge of any
duties imposed upon the Superintendent by Board policies or by vote of the Board may be
delegated to other district personnel. The delegation of power or duty, however, will not relieve
the Superintendent of responsibility for the action taken under such delegation.

authority and accountability of staff, as far as the Board is concerned, is considered to be the
authority and accountability of the Superintendent of Schools.

REFERENCES

BE-School Act

School Trustee Oath of Office Regulation

6130 — Role of the Board Policy

6140 — Role of the Trustee and Trustee Code of Conduct Policy
6315 — Delegation to the Superintendent Policy

Page 27 of 33



6315 | Delegation to the Superintendent Policy

Date Approved: September 09 2014
Date Amended: May 26 2015

The Superintendent or designate shall authorize expenditure of funds:
a) within the limit of an adopted budget,
b) inagreement with Board policy, school district procedures, and legal requirements, and
¢} subject to any direction that the Board may give the Superintendent regarding expenditure
limitations or reporting requirements on specific sections of the budget.

The Superintendent shall establish procedures which clearly delegate authority to expend funds within
each budget program, establish accountability for those expenditures, and outline measures of control.

No individual or group delegated authority and accountability for a program shall expend funds beyond
the budget for that program without the written authorization of the Superintendent or designate.

The Superintendent is authorized to make necessary adjustments or over-expenditures to handle
emergencies, provided that the Board is advised as soon as possible.

The Superintendent may authorize adjustments required to accommodate increased or reduced
revenues. Such adjustments shall be reported to the Board.

The Superintendent or designate may approve transfers that repurpose program budgets, given changes
in educational or business realities, changes in strategy or as approved by the Board. Transfers of any
kind shall be made in keeping with prevailing accounting regulation and Ministry directive as given in the
Accounting and Reporting Guidelines of the Ministry’s K-12 District Financial Accountability Website.

REFERENCES

School Act: Sections 110, 111, 112, 112.1, 113, 114, 115, 117, 118.
6310 — Role of Superintendent Policy

7220 - Purchasing and Tendering Policy

Page 28 of 33



1120 | French Immersion Policy

Date Approved: January 14, 2014
Date Reviewed/Amended:

RATIONALE/PURPOSE

French Immersion programming provides the opportunity for students in the school district to
become bilingual in both of Canada's official languages, English and French.

POLICY

The Board of Education believes that students should have the opportunity to receive instruction in
the French language through French Immersion programs in elementary, middle, and secondary
grades. The French Immersion program operates as an optional district operated and managed
program. The French Immersion Program is not intended to be a selective program. It is in students'
best interests that classes include students with a variety of aptitudes, cultures, and backgrounds.
The Board believes that French Immersion instruction should be available to all students who desire
to be enrolled in the program providing staffing requirements can be accommodated.

REFERENCES

School Act, section 5(3)

Ministry of Education Policy: French Immersion Program

Ministerial Order 333/99, Educational Program Guide Order

Ministerial Order 295/95, Required Areas of Study in an Educational Program
Ministerial Order 302/04, Graduation Program Order

Page 29 of 33



1320 | Communicable Diseases and Immunizations Policy

Date Approved: January 14, 2014
Date Amended:

The Board of Education acknowledges its obfigation under the Workers Compensation Act (Part 6)
and School Act (sections 91, 92) to provide a safe environment for students and employees and to
ensure the health and safety of the public it serves.

Precautions will be taken to ensure that an individual's medical condition does not present a health
and safety risk to students and employees. The Board supports appropriate procedures regarding
infectious blood borne pathogens and immunizations, as described in the regulations.

The Board recognizes that a student with an infectious blood borne-disease is entitled to an
educational program and, insofar as it is possible and prudent, shall be treated as any other student
with a medical condition. The student's personal physician shall be responsible for evaluating the
student's health.

A Board employee with an infectious blood-borne disease shall be treated as would any other
employee with a medical condition. The employee's personal physician shall be responsible for
evaluating the employee's health.

In the case of both students and employees, Northern Health will be consulted on the precautions
that are appropriate for the district to implement.

The Board endorses the position of Northern Health that all school-age children should be protected

by immunization against all common, preventable diseases.
REFERENCES

Workers Compensation Act (Part 6)

Schoél Act (Sections 91, 92)

Northern Health website,
htips://northernhealth.ca/Y ourHealth/PublicHealth/ImmunizationandVaccines.aspx accessed online
March 29, 2017

Page 30 of 33



Province of British Columbia Healthlink BC Website, Blood and Body Fluid Precautions,
https://www .healthlinkbc.ca/healthlinkbe-files/fluids-protecting-against-infection accessed online
March 29, 2017. '

1320-10 Communicable Disease Regulation

1330-10 Immunization of Students Regulétion

Page 31 of 33



District Technology Steering Committee
Wednesday, May 24, 2017
Minutes

Regrets: Trustee James Horne, Raegan Sawka
Present: Paramjit Khaira, Andrew Samoil

Minutes:

1. Back up files to H: drive - In preparation for summer maintenance please store all of
your files and folders on your H: drive. Tech department will be replacing some older
computers and laptops. Legislation requires us to remove the hard drives and
permanently erase the data. Submit a Help Desk ticket if you require assistance in
saving your documents.

2. Email upgrade — the new email system is being deployed. The online version accessed
from the district website has a new look but retains the same functionality of the older
version. You can now store up to 50 GB of data — 10 times more than the older version.
Some users are experiencing problems accessing the program and IT staff will continue
to work on these issues.

3. InteGrade Pro software — no longer available after July 30, 2017. Security risk as it
resides on old version of MS server that is no longer supported by Microsoft. Intergrade
is no longer in business therefore updates and fixes are no longer available. Continued
use may result in a risk of infection by ransomware or other types of virus.

4. Information Technology Department targets for 2017-2018
a. Ensure network infrastructure allows digital devices work well and consistently,
including reliable access to online resources (ERAC online resources, L4U, Learn
360, etc.)
b. Provide improved response times to Help Desk tickets.
Ensure IT staff have appropriate training to support school and business
functions. '

Adjournment: 3:55 pm

Next Meeting: Wednesday, September 20, 2017

Page 32 of 33



PRINCE
RUPERT
SthooLD!strid Neo. 52

2017-18

Date Meeting
September 12, 2017 Regular Board Meeting
October 10, 2017 Regular Board Meeting
November 14, 2017 Regular Board Meeting
December 5, 2017 Regular Board Meeting
December 12, 2017 Regular Board Meeting
January 16, 2018** Regular Board Meeting
February 13, 2018 Regular Board Meeting
March 6, 2018*** Regular Board Meeting
April 10, 2018 Regular Board Meeting
May 8, 2018 Regular Board Meeting
June 12,2018 | - Regular Board Meeting

*#%  Reschedule the January 9", 2018 regular scheduled meeting to
January 16™ due to Winter Break.

##* Reschedule the March 13", 2018 regular scheduled meeting to
March 6™ due to Spring Break,

Updated 26 gy 207





